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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Dear Investor,
On behall of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present Alhamra Islamic Stock
Fund accounts review for the year ended June 30, 2024,

Economy Review

Fiscal year 2024 marked a period ol macroeconomic recovery for Pakistan, averting a
looming default brought about by continued economic mismanagementl. This turmaround
was pnmarily attributed Lo Pakistan entering a new [MF program afler several months of
delay. The government secured a much-needed Stand-by Arrangement (SBA) facility of
USD 3.0 billion from the IMF in June 23, and managed to receive imely rollovers from
riendly countries. It also showed unwavering commitment to remain compliant with the
IMF targets and as a result government was able to successfully complete the program.

The caretaker government took office in August 2023 and immediately faced speculative
pressure on Lhe currency. causing it to spike to a record high of 307 in the interbank
markel. Exchange rate in informal market reached a higher of near 330 PKR/USD
reflecling an increase of speculative activity and rampant uncertainty. The government
took decisive steps against smuggling of dollar, abuse of Afghan Transit and illegal
money dealers in September 2023, which spurred a rapid recovery in the exchange rate.

This helped in improving confidence and narrower spreads in open and interbank rates.
The authonties also placed mechanisms to strictly monitor exchange rate payments to
manage the overall external balance. Combination of both administration measures and
steps to discipline external and fiscal accounts helped restore overall stability. The USD
PKR close the year al 278.3 appreciating by 2.6% since the start of the year.

Country posted a current account deficit (CAD) of USD 464 million in the first eleven
months of the fiscal year 2024 (11MFY 24) declining by 88% YoY compared to a deficit
of USD 3.8 billion in the corresponding period last year. Narrowing trade deficit was the
major contributor towards improving CAD as 11.3% increase in exports coupled with an
2.3% drop in mports led to a 17.0% contraction in the trade deficit. The county's
external position improved with SBP’s foreign exchange reserves increasing to USD 9.4
billion as of June 2024 compared to USD 4.4 billion at the end of last fiscal year. This
was on account of flows from the IMF, friendly countries and multilateral sources.

Headline inflation represented by CPl averaged 23.9% during the fiscal year 2024
compared to 29.0% last year. Inflation remained on the higher side as massive currency
depreciation in the prior periods led to surge in [ood and energy prices. The government
also hiked electnicity base tan{T and gas prices to comply with the IMF conditions, which
led to Further inflationary pressures. The SBI* reduced the policy rate by 150bps to 20.5%
in the last monetary policy of the year held on June 10, 2024, The monetary policy noted
a significant decline in inflation, resulting in a substantially positive real interest rate,
which justifies initiating a monetary easing cycle.

The country’s GDP grew by 2.4% in the financial year 2023-24 as compared to -0.2%
last year. Agriculture grew by 6.3%. Services and industrial sector witnessed a paliry
increase of 1.2% each. Histonic high interest rates coupled with political uncertainty were
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

the major culprits behind the subdued mdustrial and services output. On the fiscal side,
FBR tax collection increased by 29.6% in FY24 to PKR 9,285 billion, missing the target
by a modest PKR 130 billion.

Equity Market Review

The stock market witnessed exuberance in fiscal year 2024, as the benchmark KSE-100
increased by staggering 89.2% or 36,992 points, to close at all time high of 78,445 points.
This also makes Pakistan the best performing market in the world with USD return of
04 .4% n the year.

The bullish momentum continued throughout the year was on account of improvement in
macroeconomic indicators after Pakistan entered into the new IMF program. Market
participants also cheered the successful completion of all IMF reviews under SBA.
Moreover, the successful conclusion of elections in February 2024 brought long due
clarity amongst investors. In addition, reaffirmation by the incumbent government Lo
continue structural reforms, along with the intention to enter a longer IMF program,
further uplifted sentiment. Lastly, the strength of the local currency post-crackdown on
currency smuggling and hoarding, strong corporate prolitability, increase in laxes on
other asset classes in the budget FY25, and start ol monetary easmng with 150bps cut, all
contributed to the sustamnable rally.

During FY24, Foreign investors, Insurance, and Corporates were nel buyers with an
mflow of USD 141 million, USD 126 mllion and USD 36 million, respectively. While
major selling was witnessed [rom Banks and Mutual Funds with outflow of USD 141
million and USD 48 million, respectively. During FY24, average trading volumes for
KSE-AIll Index saw an increase ol 140.4% to 461 million shares compared to about 191
million shares in the same period last year. Similarly, the average trading value during the
period saw a rise of 118.5% over previous year lo near USD 55 million.

Banking, Fertilizer, and E&P scclor were the major contributors to the index gain
adding 13.262/5,074/4,300points, respectively. Banking sector witnessed broad based
rally as entry into the IMF program diminished the probability of local debt restructuring
besides strong prolitability. Fertilizer seclor performed due to better than expected
dividends while E&P rallied due to the news of clearance of gas circular debt, which
would improve the sector cash flows.

FUND PERFORMANCE

During the period, ALHISF delivered a return of 90.42% as compared to benchmark
return of 78.70%. Overall equity exposure of the fund stood at 94.1% at the end of the
period. The fund changed its investment strategy several times during the quarter Lo cope
with various sector and company level fundamental developments. During the period, the
fund had exposures majorly in Cement, Commercial Banks and Pharmaceuticals
Companies.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

The Net Assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2024 stood at Rs. 4,080 million as compared to
Rs. 2,479 million as at June 30, 2023 regmstering an increase of 64.58%.

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as at June 30, 2024 was Rs. 15.13 as compared to
opening NAV of Rs. 9.01 per unit as at June 30, 2023 registering an increase ol Rs. 6.12

per umnil.

Economy & Market — Future Qutlook

Pakistan GDP is expected to rebound to 3.5% 1n FY25 after a disappointing performance
last year where the GDP increased by only 2.4%. The outlook for industrial output is
relatively optimistic with an expected growth of 4.0% compared to 1.2% last year
Macroeconomic stability, stable currency and decline in interest rates will help revive the
industrial and service sector growth. Agriculture performance 1s hkely to remain on the
lower side due to high base effect.

A new stalf-level loan agreement has been reached between Pakistan and the
International Monetary Fund (IMF) under which the country will receive USD 7.0 billion
over 37 months. The fnal approval of the loan will be given by the IMF Executive
Board. Successful continuation of the IMF program 1s a key positive as it wall allow us to
tap funding from bilateral and multilateral sources. However, our external position still
remains precarious due to debt outflows and our inability to raise funds through
international Eurobond or Sukuk. Thus, we would continue to run a sustainable current
account this year to stave off external concerns. We expect a CAD of USD 1.0 billion
(0.2% of GDP) in FY25 as policy of consolidation 1s likely to continue under the IMF
umbrella.

The USD PKR 1s expected to remain stable as the government is focusing on improving
current account deficit on the back of recovery 1n export and remittances. Entry into the
new IMF program will also increase visibility on the external [unding. We expect
LUSD/PKR to close the fiscal year around PKR 311.

The inflation reading has started to come down due to base effect and relaavely stable
currency. The headline inflation number in June 2024 clocked of 12.6% compared to a
high of 38.0% in May 2023. The core inflation also registered a significant slowdown,
clocking at 14.1% which 15 a low of 23 months. The inflation reading 15 expected to
decline to single digits in 1HFY25. Keeping in view the inflabionary trends, external and
fiscal position we expect interest rate (o decline to 14-15% by June 25,

From the capital market perspective particularly equities, the market is still trading at
cheap valuations. Market cap to GDP ratio 1s at 9.8%, a discount of 48% [rom its
historical average of 18.9%. Similarly, Earming Yield minus Risk Free Rate is close to
7.2%, compared to the historical average of 3.0% signifying a deep discount at which the
market is trading. The resolution of challenges on external account will help te unlock
markel potential. We believe a micro view of sectors and stocks will remain important
and investment selection should focus on companies, which trade at a deep discount to

their intrinsic value. The market 1s currently trading at PER of 4.7x, while offering a
dividend yield of 11.2%.
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MUTUAL FUND INDUSTRY REVIEW

The Net Assets ol the open-end mutual funds industry increased by about 64.6% during
FY24 1o PKR 2,574 billion. Total money market funds grew by about 45.0% since June
2023. Within the money market sphere, conventional funds showed a growth of 33.0% to
PKR 629 billion while Islamic funds increased by 58 2% to PKRE 679 billion. In addition,
the total fAixed Income funds mcereased by about 104.7% since June 2023 to PKR 756
billion while Equity and related funds increased by 52.3% o PKR 255 billion.

In terms of the segment share, Money Market funds were the leader with a share of
around 50.8%,. followed by Income funds with 37.3% and Equity and Equity related
funds having a share of 9.9% as at the end of June 30, 2024,

MUTUAL FUND INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

Both Bonds and Equities are likely to do well n the next year on the back of cut in
interest rates. During the year., signmificant interest of investors is already wvisible in
Income Funds while equity fund is likely to see imflows post new IMF agreement.
Relatively High interest rates during the period would encourage sustained flows in the
money market funds as they are ideal for investors with a short-term honzon and low nisk
profile.

Our operations remained seamless and given our competitive edge in digital access and
online customer experience, we are prepared to get benefits of the growing number of
investors available online.

MANAGEMENT COMPANY

On Aprl 18, 2023, MCB Bank Limited (MCB), being the parent company ol MCB-Anfl
Habib Savings and Investments Limited, has acquired 21,664,167 (30.09%) shares of
MCB-Anf Habib Savings & Investment Limiled (MCB-AH) from Anf Habib
Corporation Limited (AHCL). By virtue of this transaction MCB Bank Limited's
shareholding in MCB-AH has increased from 36,956,768 (51.33%) shares o 58,620,935
(81.429%) and AHCL no longer holds any shares in MCB-AH.

Consequently, members of the Company in an Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM)
held on July 07, 2023 have resolved via special resolution that the name ol the Company
be changed rom MCB-Anfl Habib Savings and Investments Limited to MCB Investment
Management Limited and Secunties and Exchange Commission ol Pakistan (SECP) has
approved the change in name on August 15, 2023,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Fund is committed to implement the highest standards of corporate governance. The
Board comprises of eight (8) members including the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and
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has a diverse mix of gender and knowledge. The Board consists of | female and 7 male
directors, categorized as follows:

» 4 Non — Executive Direclors;
* 3 Independent Directors; and
s | Executive Director (CEO).

The details of above are as under:

sSr. Namme Status Mumhers‘h;p "E other Board
MNo. Committees

1. Mr. Haroun Rashid Non-Executive Director Mone

2.  Mr. Shoab Mumiaz Non-Executive Direclor HRE&ER* Commuilice

* ATHN
3. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Non-Executive Director HR&ER Cun"fmltlt.e
Audit Committee
4.  Mr. Manzar Mushtag Non-Executive Director  Audit Committee
5. SH}red . Saval Mol Independent Director Audit Commutiee (Chairman)
ussain

6o. Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy Independent Director HR&R* Commmtiee (Chairman)
7. Ms. Mavra Adil Khan Independent Director HR&R* Commiltee

8. ;_:;h Khawaga.  Khalil Executive Direclor HR&R* Committee

* HRER stands for Human Resource and Remumeration

Management is continuing to comply with the provisions of best practices set out in the
code of corporate govemance. The Fund remains committed to conduct business in line
with listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange, which clearly defined the role and
responsibilities of Board of Directors and Management.

The Board of Direclors is pleased to report that:

a. The financial statements, present fairly the state of affairs, the results of operations,
cash flows and changes in equity:

b. Proper books of accounts of the fund have been maintained;
¢. Appropriate accounting policies as stated in the notes to the financial statements
have been consistently applied n preparation of financial statements and

accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

d. Intemational Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, provisions of
the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment & Regulations) Rules, 2003,
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Non-Banking Fmance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008,
requirements of the respective Trust Deeds and directives issued by the Securities
& Exchange Commssion of Pakistan have been followed in the preparation of
financial statements.;

e. The system of mmternal control 15 sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and momtored with ongomg efforts to improve 1t further;

. There are no signmficant doubts upon the fund’s ability to continue as gomg
CONCern;

g. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate
Governance, as detailed in the listing regulations;

h. The outstanding taxes, statutory charges and duties, if any, have been [ully
disclosed in the audited financial statements;

1. The statement as to the value of investments of provident/gratuity and pension fund
is not applicable on the Fund but applies to the Management Company; hence no
disclosure has been made in the Dhrectors” Reporl.

- As at June 30, 2024, the Company 1s in compliance with the requirements of
Directors” Traimng Program, as contained m Regulation No. 20 of the Code;

k. The detailed pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2024 15 annexed;

l. A formal and effective mechanism i1s put in place for an annual evaluation of the
Board’s own performance, members of the Board and Committees of the Board:

m. The details of attendance of Board of Directors meeting is disclosed in Onancial
statements. Below are the details of committee meetings held during the year ended

June 30, 2024
1. Meeting of the Audit Committee.

During the year, four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The
attendance of each participant 1s as follows:
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Number

Number of meetings
Name of Persons n!’ Attendance Leave
meetings required Attended S
held cquir &
I Syed .'_-_“:avall Moeekal 4 4 0
Hussain
2. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 4 4 4 0
3. Mr Manzar Mushtaq 4 4 4 0

2. Meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee.

During the year, two (2) meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee were held. The attendance of each participant 1s as [ollows:

Number of meetings
Number
Name of Persons of Atiendance Leave
% f Attended
meetings | required granted
i Mr. Fahd Kamal
© Chinoy 2 2 2 -
2. Mr. Shoaib Mumiaz 2 2 2 -
3 Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 2 2 |
4 Ms. Mavra Adil
: Khan 2 2 | 1

n. The trades in the Units of the Fund were carried out during the year by Directors,
Chiel' Executive Oflicer, Chiel Operating Officer, Chiel' Financial Officer,
Company Sccretary, and Chief Internal Auditor of the Management Company and
their spouses and minor children.
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Dividend
Investment | Redemption A, .
Nsn. Name Designation P Distribution |
{Number of Units)
Muhammad Chief Financial
1. Asif Mehdi & Operating 637.907.99 734,399 .25 1.388.72
Rizvi Officer
5, |Astel-Ahmad S ey 22542097 | 225.425.16
Faisal Secretary
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

EXTERNALAUDITORS

The Fund’s external auditor’s M/s. A.F Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants have
retired afler completion of audit for Financial Year ended June 30, 2024. The Audit
Committee has recommended re-appointment of M/s. ALF Ferguson & Co. Chartered
Accountants as external auditors ol the Fund for [inancial year ending June 30, 2025 and
the Board has also endorsed the recommendation of the Audit Committee. M/s. A.F
Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants has also expressed their willingness to act as
the Fund’s external auditors.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Board is thankful to the Fund's wvalued investors, the Securities and Exchange
Commussion of Pakistan and the Trustees of the Fund for their continued cooperation and
support. The Directors also appreciate the efforts put in by the management team.

On behalf of Directors,
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Chief Executive Officer Director
September 25, 2024 September 25, 2024
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Fund Type and Category

Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund [Formerly MCB Pakistan Islamic Stock Fund] is an Open-End Sharnah
Compliant Equity Scheme,

Fund Benchmark
The benchmark for ALTTST 15 KMI-30 Index.
Investment Objective

The objective of the Fund is to provide investors long term capital appreciation from its investment in Shariah
Compliant Equity Securities.

Invesiment Sirategy

Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund is an Open-ended Shariah Compliant Equity Scheme which primarily invesis in
Shariah Compliant Equity Securities. The Fund shall be subject to such exposure limits as specified in the
Rules, the Regulations and directives issued by SECP from time to time.

Manager’s Review

During the period, ALITISF delivered a return of 90.42% as compared to benchmark retum of 78.70%.
Owerall equity exposure of the fund stood at 94.1% at the end of the period as compared to 94.3% at June 30,
2023. At the period end, the fund was 94.1% invested in equities, with major exposure in Cements,
Commercial Banks, and Pharmaceuticals.

The Net Assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2024 stood at Rs. 4,080 million as compared to Rs. 2,453 million as
at June 30, 2023 registering a increase of 66 3%. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as at June 30, 2024
was Rs. 15.13 as compared to opening NAY of Rs. 9.01 per unit as at Jane 30, 2023 registering a increase of
Rs. 6.12 per unit.

Asset Allocation as on June 30, 2024 (% of total assets)

Aszet Allocation (Yease of Total Assets) Jun-14
Stock / Equities 04 1%
Cash 5.0%
Others including receivables 0.9%
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Sector Allocation (%age of Total Asset)

Cash & Other
Assels Cament
Cither Eguities 5 G I0.4%, .
29.3% Commercial
Banks
12.7%

DIl & GAS .
EXPLORATION Pharmaceuticals
COMPANIES _ Power 10.8%
10.4% Generation &
. Distribution
13.5%

Syed Abid Ali
Fund Manager
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PARISTAN LIMITED

Hoad Offics:
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IRUSTEE REPORT T THE UNIT HOLDERS
ALHAMBEA ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

Report of the Truviee pursuant (o Regulstion 41(k) and clauie 8 of Schedale V of the Nos-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulntions, 2008

We Centmal Depositiry Commumy of Pakisen Limited, hemg the Trostee of Albanys Tsbiric
Stnck Fund (the Fund) are ol e opinion thal MOUB lovesimenl .'ﬁ'.!-"l-l'l-;tl'rlL"."l? Limmiied beltg the
Munapgement Company of the Fund bos inall matoris! respeots maneged the Fund during the
your erded June 3, 2024 In acoordence with the provisions of ke following:

{1 Limbations impesed on the imvestment powens ol ihe Mansgemant Company under the
canstitutive dncuments of the Fund:

(i) The jricing. lismace and redemption of units ate carried o2 in sccordanee with the
roquirements of the comsiimive documents of the Fond:

iy The maeagement foe, fee payible 1o Commigsion and of her sxpenden paid o ibe Pund
during the pariod arg & sccondunees with ihe spplicable regulstory Fumewnrk; amd

(i) The Nop-Baaking Froance Compnnics (Establishment snd Regultions) Hules, 2003, the
Nem-Hanking Finatice Companies aml Nogifierd Fntities Regulations, 2008 and the
comutriutive documents of e Fund

For the attertion ol uttit holders, during an onaite inupection of the Managesent Company, (he
Becurities and Exchange Canmission of Pakistan (SECH) sdemificd cortain maiters relsted o
the chrrging wnd allocation of selling und markseing expesses 1 the Fand Acoordingly, the
Marmgemont Compsny, following the posbines snd interpreiation provided by the SECP, will
compentste 10 (e mtitied anit haldem

i
- _.lvjl

Badivddio Akber

Chief Exerutive Officor

Ceniral Deposilory Company of Paldstan Limiied

Karachi: Seprember 30, 2024
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REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY BOARD

Karachi: September 23, 2024

REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY BOARD

Alhamdulillah, We the Sharinh Advisory Board of Alhamra [slamic Stock Fund [the Fund), are issuing this
riport in accordance with the ffering document of the Fund, The scope of the report is to express an opinion
on the Shariah compliance of the Fund's activities

It is the respons|bility of M/s MCB lovestment Management Limited, the management company of the fund, to
establish and maintain a system of internal controls to ensure complianee with Shartah guidelines. Our
responsibility is to express an opinbon, baged on our review ol the representition made by the management,
to the extent whers such com phiance can be objectively ver fied.

A review |5 lUmited primarily to Inguire to the Management Company's personnel and review ol varfous
documents prepared by the management company to comply with proscribed eriterias In the light of the
abowe, we hereby certify that:

»  We have roviewsd and approved the mades of Investment of Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund
[ALHISF) in the |ight of the Shariah guidelines

«  All the pravistons of the scheme and investments made on account of ALHISF by Management
Company are Shanah Compliant and in accordance with the criveria established.

= (in the hasis of information provided by the Management Company. all the operatinns of ALHISF
for the year ended have been in compliance with Shanah principles.

During the year an amoont of Rupees 4,207 298 was recorded o charity expense. The total amount of charity
payable as at 30 june 2024 amounts to fs. 4,207,290,

May Allah bless us with Tawfreq to accomplish these cherished tasks, make us successful in this world and in
the hereafter, and forgive our mistakes,

7 . I. rlj .1-

4 L.; ‘LJ o

Dr Muhammad Zubair Usmani Dr.Ejar Ahmed Samadani
[Shariah Advisor) (Shariah Adwvisor]

For and on behall of Shariah Advisory Board
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SHARIAH COMPLIANCE AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

UH Hassan Naeem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

A7 Seodrerees T
e F
Larasts, Puisgian

Phiore o050 27 BALNESEE-3
Vtei} e LM b

indepondent Assurance Report on Compliance with the Shariah Governance Regulations, 2023

To the unit holders of Alhamra lsiamic Stock Fund {the Fund)

1. introduction

‘Wa have undertaken a reasorable assurance engagement that the Securities and Sxchange Commission
of Pakigtan (SECP) has required in terms of s Shariah Governance Regulations, 2021 (the Regulatons) -
Extarnal Shariah Aodit of Alhamirs lslamic Stock Fund (the Fund) for astessing compliance of the Fund's
financiai arrangements, comracts, and trensactions having Shariah implicstions with Sharizh principles for
the year ended June 30, 2024, This engagemant was conducted by & multidistiplinary team incheding
assurance practitboners and independent Sharizh schotzrls).

2. Applicabls Criteria

The critedia for the aasurgnce engagement. against which the underiying subject matter (firancisd
armEnpEments, contracts, and transactions having Shariah implications for the yaar ended fune 30, 2024
Is assessad, comprise the Sharlah principles and rules as defined n the Regulations end roproduced @1
under,

L Llegslend egulatory framework administered by the Commission;

I, Sharah standards lssued by the Accounting and Aud|ting Organimtion for slamec Financiel
institutions {AADIFI), a5 notified by Commission;

i slamic Fnancial Accounting Standards, developed by the Insotute of Chamsred Accountants of
Pakistan, & notified by the Commisson;

. Gukdance #nd recommendstions of the Shariah advisasy ommiltes, 35 notifled by Commission;
and

¥ Approvals, rulings or pronouncements of the Sharizh supsrvisory board ar the Sharleh advisor of
the lslami finenclal institution, in line with (1) to (W] above

The above criteria were evaluated for thelr impliations an the finencis! statements of the Fund for the
year ended June 30, 2014, which are annexed

3. Mapagement's Respongibifity for Sharlah Compilance

Managament |s responiible 1o enture that the financlal arrangaments, contracts, and transactions having
Sharizh Imphications, entered inte by the Fund with ks customars, other financial msbtutions, and
stakeholders, and related policies and procedures, are, in substance and in their legal form, in compiance
with the requirements of Shariah rules and principles. The managamant is also responsible for tha design,
implementaton, snd malmenance of appropriate |nternal coptrol procedures with respect to Such
comphlance and maintenance of misvant accounting records

5 =g B USRI e 5 USSR Jteom P Sy s
wahunre Cffhoas 100, Tl el Lahoee SRIOCE (P —— k]
kbl Ot Voow Cw G Paw My || B Pagepetia ot B dera, ide=amne) F ey E'[}HL‘.! l_'“ F“.L\!E
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SHARIAH COMPLIANCE AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

UH Hassan Naeem & Co.

Chariered Acoountants

4. Qur Independence and Cuality Cantral

We have complied with the independence and other ethicsl requirements of the Code of Ethies for
Charterad Accountants issued by the Imtitute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, which Lt faunded an
fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and dis cove, confidentalitg and
professianal belador,

The firm applies Internations! Standard on Quality Contral 1 “Quslity Cantrol far Eirea That Perform Sudits
and Reviews of Historical Financial informstion, And Other Assurance and Retated S=rvices Engagements”
and accordingly mainteins a comprehensive system of guality control, Including documentad polickes and
procedures regarding complisnce with ethical requiremants, profestions) standards, snd applicable lagal
and regulatory reguirements.

5. Our Responsibility and Summary of the Work Parformed

Cur respansshlitty in conneciion with this engsgerment is to express an cpinicn an the compiance of the
Furd's financial arrangements, eontracts, and transactions having Sharlah implications with Shariah
principles, in all material respacts, for the vear ended June 30, 7024, basad on the evidance we have
ebtained. We conducted our reasonable assurance engassment in accordance with intamstionz| Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000, Assurance Engagements other than audits or roviews of historicsl
Enarcial statements, issued by the Intermational Auditing and Assuranos Stardards Bgerd

Thiat standard requires that we plan and perform this engegemant to obiain reasonable assursnce show
whether the compliance of the Fund's inancisl arsngements, contracts, and transsictions having Shariah
implications with Shariah principles is free from material misstatement

The procedurss sslacted by us for thet sngagement depended on our judgment, Inchuding the assessmuent
of the risks of material ron-compiiznce with the Sharish princples. In making those risk assesments, we
congiderod and tested the internal control relevant to the Fuad's compllance with the Shariah principles
in order to design procedures thal are approprise in the circumstanoes, but not for the purpose of
expresting an. opinlon on the effectiveness of the Fund's intemal control We have deslgned and
performed mecessary werification procedures on various financial arrangements, comdracts, and
transactions having Shariah implications and related policles and procedures based on judgmental and
dystematic ssmples with regard (o the compliance of Shariah principles {criteria specified in para 2 above)

We believe that the evidence we have abtained through performing our procadures was sufficient and
appropriate to provids @ basis for cur opinion

7. Conclusion

Baged on our ressonable assurance engagement, we report that In our opinlon, Fund's financial
Arangements, contracts, and transactions for the year ended June 30, 2024 are in compliance with the
Shariah principles (criteria specified in para 2 above), In all material reapects

UHY Hazzan Masem & Co,
Chartered Accountarits
Engagemant Farimer: Arsian Ahmed
Dated: September 27, 2024

S T T T OGRS AT ] ] Ty
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

pwc AFFERGUSON&CO.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Unit holders of Alhsmra [slamic Stock Fund
Report on Uhe Audit of the Flnanelal Statements
Opinion
We bave sudited the finsncia] statements of Alhamra [slamle Stock Pand (the Fund), which comprise the
sintemient of assets and linbilities as ot Tume 30, 2024, and the income statement, sintement of

comprehensive income, stafement of movernend in unit bolders’ fund and eash flow stalement for the year
tien ended, and notes 1o the fimncial statvments; including material scccanting policy information.

Tn owr opinion, the sceompanying financial statements give a true and fairview of the finenelal position of
the Fund as at June 30, 2024, and of its financial performance and iis cash Aows for the year then ended i
acenrdanes with the sceounting and raporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our sndit in sceordancs with Internstional Standards on Anditing (T8As) as spplicabile is
Pakistan, Our responsibilities nnder those stendards are farther described tn the Audttor's Responsisiitiae
Jor the Audit of the Finaneial Staterments section of our report. We ars independent of the Pund in
accerdance with the International Erhics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Aceountents s ndopted by the Tnstitute of Chayrtered Accoumtants of Pakintan (the Code) and we have
fuifiiled cur other ethical responaibifities i secordancs with the Code. Wi bebeve that the sudit evidenes
we have ohininsd s sufficient snd appropriate to provide s basis for our-opinion.

Key Audit Malters

Eey audit matters are those matiers that, in car profossional judgment, were of most significante in our
audit of the financial staterments of the current poriod. These matters were addmused In the context of our
mudit of the financial atatements as a whale, and (0 forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters,

1 Net Asset Valoo (NAV)
(Refer note 6 1o the financial statvments)

Tirvestrnents rtg:llilm- ﬂ:ﬂml umﬂnn}lmrldhmdmw others incloded the following
BN OF Skt Rt vpd . TH Pttt o2 Obtainod independent confirmations for verif)
iy, the
:ﬂtjal;:l.ﬂ;ﬂu.;'n_.lul?: 40, 2024 amounied o B, Satentd olf the fave bortiobio aa a1 June 30,
wind traced [t with the boaks ind poconds of the Fiind
The edstence and peoper valuation of|  Where such confirmations were not svallsble, alternite
imntmiets for the detormination of NAY of the|  andit prossdunes wers performed;

Eﬂmﬂ‘imﬁtﬂ:ﬂ"ﬂ: b:ll “'fﬁﬁ;]:?: *  Re-parformed waluation 1o susess that investmenta are

(ke murdit matter. curried as per the valuation methodology specified in the

teeounting polichen.

s -

A_F. FERGUSON % OO, Chavtered] Accuintaris, & mambar firm of thie PusC neuork
Swate Life Bullding Ne. 1+C LL Chandrigor Bomd, PO Box g796, Kerachi-2p000, Pebins
Tl + @@ (21} I4RO68R-6 Taqmb71-5 Fay: 0@ (21) Fag 5007 T840 8 a0 aad 70 <unanr. e camy ko

S HARACH] oLAHORE «EfLAMARAD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

pwe AFFERGUSON&CO.

Oiher Matter

The financial statement of the Fund for the vear ended June 30, 2oy were audited by another firm of
Chartered Acerumtants who had expressed an nnmodified opinion thereon vide there meport dated
September 22, 2a0y,

Diher Information

Muonagement is responaible for the other information. The other information comprised the information

incladed in the Annual Report, but does not inchude the finoncial matements and our auditor’s mepon
Lh.ﬂﬂ]:l.

Oir opinion on the Gaancial statements dosn not eover the other information and we do nod express any
form of asswranee conelusion thereon

In eonnection with owr audit of the financial statements, our responsLillity s 1w read the other information
and, in doing o, conslder whether the other information s materisly inconsistent with the financisl
stalements of ot knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwisa appears 1o be materially misstated. I, based
on the work we have performed, we conchide that thore is a matorial misstatement of thisether information,
wit are equired to report that fact. We have nothing to eepart i this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors of the Management Company for
the Financial Siatemenis

Mpnagement is responsible for the preparntion wnd fair preseniation of the finsncial satements s
secordance with scoonnting and reporting standaerds as applicable in Pakistan, and for such internal comtrol
i managemont determines in necosmary to ennlile the proparation of financlal statements that aro free from
trateria] misstatenvent, whether due 1o fraod ar error.

Ir. preparing the financlal statements, management is responsihle for asseasing the Fund's ability to
comtinye s 0 going concern, disclosing. s spplicable, mattem related 10 going concern and naing the going
conecern basis of scoounting unless management either intends to Haitidate the Fand of to cease opesations,
ar bas no realistic aliermnative bt to do so,

Baard of directors of the Management Company is responsible for oversesing the Pamd's finuncial reporting
process,

Auditor's Responaibilities for the Andit of the Financinl Statements

Our phjectives are (o obtain ressanabde assurance aboul whether the financial statements as a whole are
froe from matorial misstaternent, whether dui 1o frovd or etror, and W lssug an suditor’s feport that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurnes b on high level of sssurance, but s not & gunmentes that an audit
eotidacted in sccordance with 1543 as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists, Misstatements can aries [rom [taoed or error snd am considernd mstecial if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could rensonably be expeeted to influence the econnmic decirions of user takon on
the basis of these financial statemenis

.-A;‘rni of an wudit In aovordance wih 18As 0o applleable in Pakistan, wo exerciee profensional judgment
maintain professional skepticiam throsghont the sudit, We alse!

»  Tdentify and assess the rinks of material misstatement of the finnncial stateeests, whether due to [rasd
or error, design asd pesform audis procedures sonponsive to thawe sk, and obtain sudit evidence that
is sufficlont and sppropriste to provide o basis for our opinion. The Hak of not detecting o material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as froud may involve
collusban, lorgery, intentional ombialons, mismpresentations, or the override of intemal control,

hyer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

pwe AFFERGUSON&CO.

*  Dbtain on understanding of internel control relovant to the audit in order to desizn audit procedures
that are appropriate in the clreumitaness, but nol for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivenessof the Fund's internal control,

*  Evaluste the appropristeness of accounting policies vsed and the reasonablencss of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+  Conclude on the appropristeness of management's nse of the going concern bagls of accounting and,
based on the audit evidenee obtained, whether a matedal uncertainty exists related o events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue a5 a going coneern. If we
comeluda that o material uneertainty mdsts, we are requited to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are insdequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclisions are based on the adit evidence obtained up to the date of ser anditor's report.
Haowever, future events of conditions may canse the Fund 1o cease to continne as n going congern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, incloding the
diselosures, and whether the financinl statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that ochieves fair presentation.

We communicate with board of directors of the Management Cotnpany regarding, among other matlers,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal conteal that we identify during our sodit-

We also provide bourd of directors of the Management Company with o statement that we have complied
with televant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to commuonicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to hear on our independence, and whers
epplicable, related safeguands.

From the matters commumnicated with boord of direcoors of the Manogement Company, we determing those
matters that were of most significance in (he audit of the fnanclal statements of the current perind and are
therefore the key audit matters. We deseribe these matters i oor auditor’s report nnbess law or regulation
prechudes public disciosure sbout the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
i mutter should not be eommunicated in cur report becanse the sdverse consequences of dodng so would
reasanahly be expected to outwelgh the public interes) benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Begolatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in cur opinion the finencial statements have been prepared in all
material vespects in aecordance with the relevant provisions of the Mon-RBanking Finanee Companiss and

Motified Entities Regulations, 2008

The engagement partner on the andit resulting in this independent poditor's repart is Junaid Mesia,

wien BL

A F. Ferguson & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Earachi

Duter: October g, 2024

UDIN: ARZOZHF10611ZmPTILIGS
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS

Balances with banks

Investments

Advances, deposits and other receivables
Receivable against sale of investments
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Payable to MCB Investiment Management
Limited - Management Company
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustes
Payable to the Secunties and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Payable against purchase of investments
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Unit holders' fund (as per statement attached)

Contingencies and commitments

NUMEBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT

Note June 30, June 30,
2024 2023

—— (Rupees in '000%) —
5 204,975 120,136
6 3,688.223 2,388,010
[ 7.823 4.4M
31,284 21,150
4,132,305 2,543 697
8 14,562 13,369
9 454 324
10 304 517
9.494 24 40
11 27,834 25,758
52,648 64,368
4 079,657 2479 328
4,079,657 2479328

12

= (Number of uniis) —

269,683,354 275,081,665
(Rupees) —-

15.13 9.01

The annexed notes from 1 lo 27 form an integral part of these financial siatements.

For MCB Investment Management Limited
(Management Company)

T
A '

P,
P i A

T ay

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

INCOME

Profit on saving accounts with banks

Dividend income

Net realised gain / (loss) on sale of investments

Net unrealised appreciation / (diminution) on re-measurement of nvestments
classified as 'financial assets at fair value throwgh profit or loss’

Total income

EXPENSES

Remuneration of MCB Investment Management Limited - Management Company
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company

Allocated expenses

Selling and marketing expenses

Remuneration of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustes
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee

Fees to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Auditors’ remuneration

Brokerage, setliement and bank charges

Fees and subscription

Legal and professional charges

Shanah advisory fee

Printing and related costs

Charity expense

Total expenses

Net income / (loss) for the year before taxation
Taxation

Net income [ (loss) for the year after taxation
Earnings / (loss) per unit
Alloeation of net income for the year

Net income for the year after laxation
Income already paid on units redeemed

Accounting income available for distribution

- Redating to capital gains
- Excluding capital gains

The annexed notes from 1 to 27 form an i

ral part of these financial statements,

Note

8.1
a2
83
8.4
91
92

10

13

For MCB Investment Management Limited

(Management Company)

T
A '

P,
P i A

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

453

For the year ended
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
—— (Rupees in ‘000°) —
16,202 11,53
187,504 167,313
854,449 15,097
1,101,221 {96,264)
2,159 376 97 677
90,281 51,738
11,737 6,726
3,393 2587
16,783 33,630
4177 3,566
543 464
3,019 517
1,103 862
12,124 11,087
- 28
191 176
430 710
34 51
4,207 5,735
(148,082) (117,827)
2,011,294 {20,150)
2011,294 {20,150}
2,011,204 -
(458,927) -
1,552,367 -
1,510,149 -
42,218 -
1,552 367 -

—

T ay

Director
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STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

For the year ended
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023

—— (Rupees in "000") —
Met income | (loss) for the year after taxation 2,011,264 (20,150)

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income [ (loss) for the year 2,011,294 {20,150)

The annexed notes from 1 to 27 form an integral parl of these financial statements.

For MCB Investment Management Limited
(Management Company)

o
- .--..___..-' . o ] A
P M Muﬁén%mﬁin‘v—

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Year ended June 30, 2004 Year ended June 30, 2023
{Accumulate
c d loszes) | Accumubated
Unddi Yol losses Yois
incoma
(Rupses in 000°)
Mot assets at beginning of the year 3,132,247 (652918) 2479328 3063112 (632.7649) 2430343
kssuance of 307 544, 745 units {2023: 231,810,185 unils }
- Capilal value {al nel assels value
per unil al B baginning of the year) 2ITOHTE = 2770978 | | 2,109,475 = 2,109 475
- Blement of incomea § (loss) 1,685 860 . 1,685,860 21,879y - (21,879
Total proceads on issuance of units 4 456 038 - 4 456,838 2 0B7 596 - 2 0BT 596
Redompon of 312,943 056 unils (2023 223 831 124 unils)
- Capital valuer (al not assats value
peat wril at e beginning of the yaar) (2,B18,617) - (2819617 | (2,086 863) - |(2,036,863)
- Elament of (less) / income (1,115,997)] (458827} (1,574.524) 18,402 - 18,402
Total payments on redemption of units (3,935614) (458.927) (4,334 541) ([2018,461) - (2018 461)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) lor the year - 2011294 2011254 - (20,1504 {20,150)
Dhstiibution for the year endoed Juime 30, 2024
@ R=. 2 per unil {declared on June 26, 2024) - (3r9.654) (379.654) - - -
Refund ol capilal during the year (93 608 - {53, 608) - - -
Net income for the year less distribution (33.608) (379.654) (473.262) - - -

HMet assets at the end of the year

Accumulated losses brought forward

- Roaksed income {556, 655)
- Unrealised loss b}
(652,919)
Accounting income available for distribution
- Ralaling 1o capital gains 1.510,149
- Excluding capital gains 42 218
1,552 367
Distribwitions made duting the year {378.654)
MNel income [ loss for the yvear alter asation -
Undistributed moome | {accumulated osses) camod fomwand 519,794
Undistributed income | (accumulated losses) carried forward
- Realsed loss (581421
- Unreairsed income / (oss) 1,101,231
5189 794
(Rupeas)
Met asseot value per unit at the baginning of the year 4.01
Mel asset value per unit at the end of the year 15.13

The annexed notes from 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For MCB Investment Management Limited

(Management Company)
._'..‘1-'-"";-‘;':#-"’.";;-:-"#. F J" ]
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

(211,325)
431 444
(632 769)

{20, 150)
6529141

{556 655)
96
(B52.919)

(Rupees)
9.10

2.01

3,554, 863 510,784 4079657 3132247  [652919) Z479 308

T ay

Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met income / (loss) for the year before taxation

Adjustments for:
Dividend income
MNet unrealised appreciation / (diminution) on re-measurement of investments
classified as 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ 6.2

Increase in assets

Investments - net

Advances, deposits and other receivables
Receivable against sale of investments

Decrease in liabilities

Fayable to MCB Investment Management Limited - Management Company
FPayable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
FPayable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Payable against purchase of investments

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Dividend received
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts against issuance and conversion of units - net of refund of capital
Payment against redemption and conversion of units

Dividend paid

Net cash (used in) [ generated from financing activities

MNet increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5

The annexed noles from 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial stalements.

For MCB Investment Management Limited
(Management Company)

T
A '

P,
P i A

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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For the year ended
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
- (Rupees in '000°) —
2011,294 {20,150)
{187 ,504) (167.313)
(1,101.221) 96 264
722 569 {91,199)
(388,992) (187.397)|
(3,422) 1,772
(10,134) 21241
(402, 548) {164,404)
1,193 {419)
130 (6)
{213) (121)
{14,907) (3,301)
2076 1,240
(11,721) {2,607)
187 504 167,313
495 804 {90,897)
4,363,230 2 087 5596
(4,394 541) (2,018 461)
(379 654) :
(210,965) 689,135
84,839 {21,762)
120,136 141,898
204,975 120,136

T ay

Director
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

-

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Mhamra Islamic Stock Fund (the Fund) was established through 8 Trust Deed executed between MCB-Anf Habib
Savings and Investments Limited (now: MCB Investment Maragement Limited), as Management Company and
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as Trustee. The draft Trust Deed of the Fund was approved
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide iis lefter dated May 13, 2004 consequent to
which Trust Deed was executed on May 26, 2004 in accordance with the Asset Management Companies Rules, 1935
{AMC Ruies) repealed by the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Reguistions) Rules, 2003 (NBFC
Rules). During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Trust Act, 1882 was repealed due to promulgation of Provisional
Trust Act namely "Sindh Trusts Act, 20217 (the Sindh Trust Act) as empowered under the Eighteenth Amendment to
the Constitution of Pakistan. The Fund was registered under the Sindh Trust Act Accordingly, on August 12, 2021.

In April 2023, MCB Bank Limited acguired the entire shareholding of Anf Habib Corporation Limited ( AHCL) in MCB
Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited after which the shareholding of MCB Bank Limited has increased from
51.33% to 81.42% in the Management Company and AHCL no longer halds amy shares in the Management
Company. Consequently, members of the Management Company in an Exira Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) held
on July 7, 2023 resolved via special resolulion that the name of the Management Company be changed from MCB
Arif Habib Savings and Investiments Limited to MCB Invesiment Management Limited.

The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed to act as an Asset Management Company under the Non-
Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Requlations) Rules, 2003 through a ceriificate of registration issued
by the SECF. The regisiered office of the Management Company is siluated at Znd Floor, Adamjee House, LL
Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan.

The Fund is an open ended mutual Fund and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity
of the Fund is to provide a high absolute return by investing in equity securities. Units are fransferable and can be
redeemed by surrendering to the Fund. The Fund has been categonsed as "Sharah Compliant Equity Scheme™ by
the Board of Directors of the Management Company in accordance with the requirements of Circular 7 of 2009 dated
March &, 2009 issued by SECP

The Pakistan Credit Rafing Agency Limited {PACRA) has assigned an asset manager rating of ‘AM1° on Oclober 06,
2023 (June 30, 2023: 'AM1' dated October 6, 2022) o the Management Company. The rating reflects the
Management Company's experenced management team, structured investment process and sound guality of
systems and processes.

Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (COC) as the
Trustee of the Fund.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The transactions undertaken by the Fund are in accordance with the process prescribed under the Shariah guidelines
issued by the Shanah Advisor and are accounted for on substance rather than the form prescribed by the earber
refemred guidelines. This practice is being followed to comply with the requirements of the accounting and reporting
standands as applicable in Pakistan.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporing standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of

- International Financial Reporing Standards (IFRS Accounting Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as nofified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act 2017, along with part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984; and
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

- ihe Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), tha Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entibes Regulations, 2008 [he NBFC Ragulations) and the
requiraments of the Trust Dead.

Whara provisions of and direclives Esued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIILA of the repealed Companios
Ordinance 1984, tha NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the requirements of the Trust Deed differ from tha
IFRS Accournting Standards, the provisions of and dirnsclives issuad under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIA of the
repealed Companies Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the requirements of tha Trusl

Accounting convention

These linancial statements have been prepared under the hislorkcal cost convention excepl for Invesiments dassified
as "al fair value through profil or loss’ which are measured al their respective fair values.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are
effective in the current year

Thare are certain ameandments o the published accounting and reporting standards that are mandatory for the Fund's
annual accounting pancd beginming on July 1, 2023, However, these are nol considerad (o be relevant or did not
have any materal elfect on the Fund's linancial statements and have, theralore, nol been disclosad in these financial
siatemants axcopl thal during the yvear certain amendments 1o IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Stalements’ have
become applicable o the Fund which require entities o disclose thair matanal accounting policy informabion rather
than thair significant accounling policies. Thase amendmeants o IAS 1 have bean intreduted 1o halp entiies Improve
accounling policy disclosuras so thal they provide more useful infformation o investors and other primary users of the
financial stalemeaents. These amendmenis have been Incorporated in these financial stalemenls with the prmary
impact thal the matedal accounling policy information has been disclosed rather than the significan! accounting
policies.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are not yet
effective:

Thaere are cerlain new slandards and amendments lo the published accounting and reporting slandards thal will be
applicable o the Fund for ils annual perods beginning on or after July 1, 2024 However, these are nol considersd o
ba relevant or did not have any material elfect on the Fund's inancial statements excapl for:

- The new standard - IFRS 18 Presantation and Disdosure in Financial Statemeants (IFRS 18) (published n
April 2024) with applicability date of January 1, 2027 by LASB. IFRS 18 when adopled and applicable shall
impact the presentation of ‘Income Statement’ with carain addiional disclosures in the financial statemants;

= Amandments o IFRS 9 Financial Instrumeants' which clarily the dale of recognition and defecognibon of a
firancial assel or financial lizbiity incuding setffernant of kabilites through banking nstruments and channels
including electronic ransfers. The amendmenl when applled may Impact the liming of recognition and
derecognition of inancial labslibes.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the inancial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards reguires tha
managemeant o0 make estimates, judgments and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
hiabllitiers and meome and expenses. I also reguires the managemant lo exarcise judgment in e application of the
Company’s accounting policies. The estimales and assocated assumplions are based on histoncal expenence and
varous other faclors, including expectation of fulure evenls, Lhal are belleved o be reascnable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments aboul carrying value of assels and labilitkes.
Ihese esimates and assumpbons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions o accounting estimates are
recognised n the year n which the estimale s evised il the revision affects only thal year, of i the year of revision
and fulure years if the revision alfects both the cument and fulure years.

The estmates and judgements thal have a significant aeffect on he lnancial statements of the Fund relate o
classiication, valuation and impaimeant of inancial assats (note 4.3 and B

Functional and presentation currency

llems ncluded in these inancial statemenls are measured using the currency of the primary economic anvironmenl
in which the Fund operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which s the Fund's
funclional and presantation currency.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The malenal accounting policies applied In the preparation of these linancial stalements are sal oul below, These
policies have bean consistently applisd (o all the yaars presanied.

458 ALHAMRA ISLAMIC STOCK FUND




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

4.3.2

4.34

Cash and cash equivalents

These comprise balances with banks in savings and current accounts, cheques in hand and other short-t2rm highly
liquid investmenis with original maturities of three months or less.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement
Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer's perspective and are instruments
that do not conisin a contractual obligation o pay and thal evidence a residual inlerest in the issuer's net assels.

All equity investments are required fo be measurad in the "Statemant of Assets and Liabililes™ at fair value, with gains
and losses recognised in the “Income Statemeant”, excepl where an imevocable election has been made at the time of
initial recognition to measure the investiment at Fair Value through Olher Comprehensive Income (FVOCIH)L Thea
managemeant considers s invesiment in equily securities being managed as a group of assels and hance has
classifed them as FVPL. Accordingly, the mevocable opbon has not been considened.

The dividend income for equily securities classifted under FVWPL is recognisad in the income Slatement

Since all imvestments in equily instruments have been designaled as FVPL. the subseguenl movemeant in the fair
value of eguity securifies is muted through the Income Statement

Impairment (other than debt securities)

The fund assesses on & forward looking basis the expeciled credit loss (ECL) associated with its financial assels
camed al amortised cosl. The fund mecognises loss allowances lor such losses al each repording dale. Tha
measuremeant of ECL reffects:

- an unbiased and probabdity-weighted around that is determined by evaluating a mnge of possible oul comes:

- the lima value of monay; and

- measonable and supporiable information that is available without undue cosl or effort at the reporting date aboul
pasl events, curment condifions and forecasts of hufure economic conditions.

The Fund considers that a financial asset 5 in default when the counterparly fais o make contractual payments
within 90 days of when they @il due. Further, financial assets are written off by the Fund, in whole or parl, when it has
exhausted all practical recovery effarts and has conoluded thal there s no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Regular way contracts
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets ame mcognised on the trade date Le. the date on which tha

Fund commils o purchase or sell the assel. Regular way purchases [ sales of assets require delivery of securilies
within two days from the ransacbon date as per the stock exchange regulations._

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised at the time the Fund becomes a pardy o the contraclual provisions of the
instrumenis. These are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction cosls except for financial assels camed "at

fair value through profit or loss’. Financial assets carried "at fair value through profit or loss" are initially recognised at
fair value and ransaction costs are recognised in the Income Stalement.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the righls o receive cash flows from the financial assels have sxpired or
have bean lansfermred and the Fund has transfermed substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Any gain or loss
on derecognition of financial assets is taken to the Income Siatement.

Financial labilities

Financial habiliies are recognised al the ima whan the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of tha
instruments. These are inilially recognised st fair values and subsaquently staled at amortised cosi.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any
gain or loss on derecognition of financial habilibes is taken 1o the Income Statemeant.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

4.5

4.9

4.10

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assats and financial habilities are offsel and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Assels and
Liabilities" whon there & a loegally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and thare s an inlention to
setile ona net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the labilithas simultaneousty.

Pravisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive, obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable thal an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o seitle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are reguiary reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current
bast estimato.

Met azset value per unit

The Nel Assel Value (MAV) por unit as disclosed in the Statemen] of Assets and Liabilities s calculated by dividing
the nel assets of the Fund by the number of units in circulation at the vear end.

Issuance and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer pice, determined by the Management Company for the applications receved
by the Management Company [ distribulors during business hours on that day. The offer price represenls the Net
Aszet Value (NAY) per unit as of the close of the business day, plus the allowable sales oad and provision of any
duties, charges and transaction costs, if applicable. The sales load is payable to the Management Comparny f

Units redeemed ame recorded at the redemplion price applicable to units for which the Management Company /
distnbutors receive redemption applications dunng business hours of that day. The redemplion price is egual o NAYV
as of the close of the business day, less an amouni as the Management Company may consider o be an appropriate
provision of duties, charges and transaction costs | il applicable.

Elament of income [ (loss) and capital galns / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those In units
redeemed

Element of income represents the difference between Nel Asset Value (NAV) per unil on the ssuance or redemplion
date, as the case may be, of units and the NAYV per unil at the beginning of the relevant acocounting petiod. Further,
the elemant of income ks a transaction of capital mature and the receipl and payment of elemant of income i taken o
unit holders' fund. However, o maintain the same ex-dividend NAY of all units outstanding on the accounting dale,

net slemoant of income contnbuted on ssue of unils ving in unit holdars’ fund i refunded on units in the same
proporiion a5 dividend bears 1o accounting inoome availtable for distritsution.

Revenue recognition

- Gains / (losses) ansing on sale of investiments are induded in Income Statement and are recognised on the
date when the iransacton akes place;

- Unreakzed appreciation / (diminution) afsing on e-measurement of investments classified as linancial assels
“at fair value through peofit or loss® are incleded in the Income Statement in the period inowhich thoy anse;

- Dividend income i recognised when the Fund's nghl to receive the same s established, Le. on the
commencement of book closure of the investes company § institution dectarnng the dividend; and

- Profit on savings account with banks is recognised on time proportion basis using the effective yield method.

Expensas

All oxpenses chargeable 1o the Fund including remunaration of the Management Company and Trustee and fee to
the SECP are recognised in the Income Statement on an accrual basls

Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on tmable income at the currend rales of taxes after taking inlo sccount @
credits and rebates, if any: The charge for cument tax s calculated using the provailing tax rates.
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Deferred

Defermed lax s accounted for using the balance sheel labilily method in respect of all lemporary differences ansing
from dilferences belween lhe camrying amounl of assels and lablliles in the financial stalements and the
comesponding lax bases used in the compulation of tha laxable profil

The delerred tax liabililes are generally recognised lor all laxable lemporary dillerences and delermed lax assels are
recognisad 1o the exdent thal il is probable Lhal axable profits will be available against which the deduclible [emporany
differances, unused lax losses and lax credils can be ulilised. Dalarred (ax is calculaled al the rates thal are expoected
o apply Lo the peflod whon e dillerencas oversa, based on enacled bax males.

The income of the Fund is exempl rom income Llax under clause 99 of Parl | of the Second Schedule lo the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject o e condiion thal nol less han 90 parcant of s accounling income lor the year, as
reduced by capilal gains, whather realised or unrealisad, s distnbuted amongst the unil holders. Furthermore, (o the
purpose of delermining distribulion of al least 90 porcanl of he accounling income, he ncome distnbuled through
bonus unils shall not be laken into accounl

Tha Fund s also axempl from the provisions of soction 113 (minimum 2x) under clause 114 of Parl IV of the Second
Scheduls (o the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,

Earnings / (loss) por unit

Eamings | (loss) por unll i calcutated by dividing the nel profil | loss ol the yaar afler loealion of he Fund by tha
weighled average number of unils oulstanding during the year.

Eamings | (loss) par unil has nol been disclosed as, in the opinion of the managemenl, the delarmination ol
cumulalive weghlad average number of putstanding units for calculating EPU s nol prachcable.

Distributions to unit holders

Distribulion o e unil holdors are ecognised upon declaralion and approval by the Boamd of Direclors ol tha
Management Company. Based on Mulual Funds Associabion of Pakistans (MUFAFP) guidalines duly consented by the
SECP, distribulion for the year also includes portion of incoma already paid on unils redeemed during the year.

Distnbutions declared subseguent 1o the vear end reporling date are considered as non-adjusting evenls and ara
racognisaed in the linancial stalemeanls of the yaar in which such disliributions are declared and approved by ihe Board
of Directors of the Managemaonl Company.

Foraign curfency translation

ITmnsaclions denominaled In foreign currencles are accounled for in Pakkstanl Rupees al lhe exchange rales
prevailing al the dates of the lransactions. Foreign axchangs gains and losses resulling from the selllemeant of such
transactions and from lhe fransiabon al year end exchange rates for monaelary assals and liabiibes denominated in
foraign curfencies are recognised in the Income Stalemenl

Noto June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
BALANCES WITH BANKS (Rupees in "000") ——
Curranl accounis 51 15,711 23170
Savings accounts 52 189 263 oG, 966
204,574 120,136

Ihese nclude a balance of Rs. 2.67 {2023: Rs. 10.85) million maintained with MCE Bank Limiled, a related party.

Thesea carry profit al the rales ranging from 17.00% o 21_30% (2023: 11.43% 0 20.25%) per annurm and includs Rs
12729 (2023. Rs. 82.54) million mamnlained wilh MCB islamic Bank Limiled, 3 related party which camies profil al the
rale of 19.70% (2023: 18.50%) per anmLirm.

Note June 30, June 30,
INVESTMENTS 2024 2023
(Rupees in "0007) ——

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Lisled equily soouritios 6.1.1 3,888,223 2,388 010
3@3&& 2 398 010
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E.1.1
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6.1.1.1 Investments include 500,000 shares (2023: 500,000 shares) of The Hub Power Company Limited having market
vaiue of Rs. 81.540 million as at June 30, 2024 (2023: Rs. 34790 milion}, 700,000 shares (2023 700,000 shares) of
Ol & Gas Development Company Limited having market value of Rs_ 84. 750 million as at June 30, 2024 (2023: R=_
54 600 million). which have been pledged with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limiled for guaranteeing
satfiement of the Fund's fredes in accordance with Circular No. 11 dated Oclober 23, 2007 issued by the SECP.

June 30, Jume 30, June 30, June 340,
Name of security 2024 2023 2024 2023
— (Mumber of shares) — —— (Rupees in "0007) ——
The Hub Power Company Limiled 500,000 500,000 B1.540 a4 790
0il & Gas Developmant Company Limited 700,000 F00,.000 a4 750 54,600
1,200,000 1,200,000 176,289 B9.380

6.1.1.2 The Finance Acl, 2014 introduced amendments o the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 as a esull of which companies
are liable to withhold five percent of the bonus shares o be issued. The shares so withheld shall only be released if
the Fund deposiis lax equivalent lo five percenl of the value of the bonus shares issuad to the Fund including bonus
shares withheld, determined on the basis of day-end price on the firsl day of closure of books of the issuing company.

In this regard, & constitutional petition had been filed by Colleclive Investment Schemes (C15s) through their Trustees
m the High Court of Sindh, challenging the applicability of withholding tax provisions on bonus shares received by
C15s. The paiition was based on the fact that because CISs e exempl from deduction of income tax under Clause
99 Part | to the Second Scheduls of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, the withholding tax provision should also not be
applicable on bonus shares received by ClSs. A siay order had been granied by the Honourable High Courl of Sindh
in favour of ClSs.

Dwring the year ended June 30, 2018, the Supreme Courl of Pakistan passed a judgement on June 27, 2018
whereby the suils which are already pending or shall be filed in future must only be continued | enlerained on the
condiion that 2 minimum of 50 percent of the tax calculaied by the tax authorifies s deposited with the authonties.
Accordingly, the CiSs were required lo pay minimum 50% of the lax calculated by the tax authorities for the case o
memain continued. The CiSs faled to deposi the minimum 50% of the tax liebilty and sccordingly the silay got
vacalted auvtomatically. During the year ended June 30, 2020, the ClSs have filed a fresh constilutional petition via CP
4553 dated July 11, 2019, In this regard, on July 15, 2019, the Honoursble High Court of Sndh has issued notices to
the relevant parties and has ordered that no third party interest on bonus shares issued lo the Funds in lieu of their
investimenis be created in the meantime. The matter is still pending adjudication and the Funds have included these
shares in their portfolio, as the managament is confident that the decision of the constiutional petition will ba in favour
of the ClSs.

The Finance Act, 2018, effective from July 1, 2018, has omitled Secton 236M of ncome Tax Ordinance, 2001
requiring every company guoted on stock exchange issuing bonus shares to the shamholders of the company, o
withhold fre percent of the bonus shares o be issued. Therefore, bonus shares issued to the Fund since July 1,
2018 were nol withheld by the invesiee companies.

As at June 30, 2024, the bonus shares of the Fund withheld by cerdain companies at the ime of declaration of bonus
shares amounied o Rs. 002 million (2023: Rs. 0.03 million].

6.2 Met unrealised [diminution) / appreciation on
re-measurement of investments classified as
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss®

Market value of investments
Lass: Cammying value of invesimenis

3,888,223 2,388,010
2,454 274

1,101,221 (95, 264)

oo
.
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i
=
@
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) ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Advance tax 71 474 BHE
Profit receivable on bank balances 3213 7aT
Secunty deposi with:
- Mational Clearing Company of Pakisian Limited (WCCPL) 2,500 2. 500
- Cantral Deposiiory Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) 300 304
Crther receivables 1,236 208

7,823 4,401
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T As por clausa 47(B) of part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, payments made to
collective investmant schemes (C1Ss) are exempt from withholding tax under section 151 and 150. Howe ver,
withholding tax on dividend and profit on bank deposits o the Fund has been deducted by various withholding agents
basod on the interpretation issuced by FBR vide letter C. no. 1(43) DG (WHT2008-vVOL.1I-66417-R datod 12 May
2015 which requires every withholding agent to withhold income tax at applicable rates in case a valid exemption
cerificate under section 159(1) izsued by the concerned Commissioner of Inland Revenue (CIR) is not produced
before him by the withholdee. The tax withheld on dividends and profit on bank deposits was amountod to Rs 0.47
midlion (2023: Rs 0.66 million). Pending resolution of the matier, the amount of withholding tax deducted on dividends
and profit on bank deposits has been shown as Advance tax under "Advances, deposits and other receivables” as at
June 30, 2024 as, in the opinion of the management, the amount of tax deducted at source will be refunded.

For this purpose, the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) on behalf of varous mutual funds (including the
Funds being managed by the Management Company) had filed a petition in the Honourable Sindh High Court (SHC)

challenging the above mentioned interpretation of the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) which was decded by the
SHC in favour of FBR. A petition was filed in the Suprema Court of Pakistan by the Funds together with other ClSs
{managed by the Management Company and other Asset Management Companices) wherneby the Supreme Court
granted the petitionors leave to appeal from the initial judgement of SHC.

Hote June 30, June 30,

B PAYABLE TO MCB INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT 2024 2023
LIMITED - MANAGEMENT COMPANY ——Rupees in "000"——
Management remuneration payable 81 10,044 4102
Sindh Sales Tax payable on remuneration of the i 1,306 533

Managemant Company
Allocated expenses payable 83 256 205
Selling and markefing expenses payable B4 2816 B.479
Sales load payabla 110 -
Shariah advizory fee payable 30 50
14 562 13,360

8.1 Az per regulation 61 of the NBFC Regulations, 2008, the Managemant Company s entitled to a remuneration agual
o an amount not exceeding the maximum rate of the management fee as disclosed in the Offering Document subject
to the total expense ratio imit. Keeping in view the maximum allowable limit, the Management Company has charged
its remuneration at the rate of 3.55% por annum (2023: 2.00% per annum) of the average daily net assets of the Fund
during the year. The remuneration is payable to the Mamagement Company monthly in armears.

82 During the year, an amount of Rs. 11.74 mallion (2023: Rs. 6.72 million) was charged on account of sales tax on
management fee levied through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 at the ate of 13% (2023: 135%) and an
amount of Rs. 10.96 million (2023: R=. 6.73 million) has been paid to the Management Company which acls as a
collecting agent.

8.3 In accordance with Regulation 60 of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Company is entitied 1o chamge fecs and
pxponses related to registrar -services, accounting, operation and valustion services, related o a Collective
Investment Scheme (C1S).

The Managemen! Company, based on s own discrefion, has charged such expenses at the rate of 0.08% to 3.97%
{2023 ) per annum of the average annual nel assets of the Fund for the pericd from July 1, 2023 to Juno 30, 2024,
subject to total expensae charged baing lower than actual expense incumed.

8.4 The SECP has alliowed the Assol Management Companies to charge selling and marketing oxpenses to all
categones of opan-ernd mutual funds (except fund of funds) upto a maximum limit approved by the Board of Directors
of the Managemeant Company as part of annual plan.

Accordingty, the Management Company has charged =selling and marketing expenses based on its discretion ranging

from 0.05% to 4.30% (2023 0% to 0.65%), duly authonsed by the Board of Directors, while keeping in view the annual
plan, overall return and the total expense ratio imit of the Fund as defined under the NBFC Regulations.
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5.2

10.1

Mote June 30, June 30,
PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY 2024 2023
COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE ———Rupees in 0 ——
lrustes remunoration payabls 9.1 402 287
Sindh Sales Tax payable on trustes remunearation 9.2 52 37
A51, 224,

The Trustes s entitied (o a monthly remuneration for senices rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the Trust
Deed and Offerng Document as per the lanlf specified therain, based on the average dally nel assels of the Fund
durrng e year The tanfl struclure applicable to the Fund in respact of lrustes remunaration 1= as ollows:

Average net assel valua Tariff par annum
Up 1o Rs. 1,000 million Re0.¥ milhion or 0.20% per annum of net assats whichaver is higher.
Amount exceeding Rs.1,000 millon Rs.2.0 million plus 0.10% p.a. of net assets axceeding Fs.1 billion

Dwring the year, an amounl of Rs. 0.54 milllon (2023: Rs. 046 milllon) was chamged on account of sales tax on
remuneration of the Tusiee levied through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Acl, 2011 al the rale of 13% (June 30,
2023: 13%) and an amounl of Rs. 0.53 million (2023: Rs. 047 milllon) was paid lo the Trustes which aclts as a
collecling agenl

Mote June 30, June 30,
PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 2024 2023
COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN —Rupees in "000"——
Fee payable 10.9 a4 517

in accordances with the NBFC Regulations, a Collective Investiment Scheme (CIS) is required 1o pay non-refundable
fes to the Securiies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Accordingly, the Fund has chamed SECP fea at
the rate of 0.095%, (2023: 0.02%) par annum of the daily net assels duning the year.

Further, the Fund is required lo pay SECP fee wilhin filleen days of the close of every calendar month. Praviously, the
Fund was reguired 1o pay SECP feo within three months of the close of accounting yoar.

MNots June 30, June 30,
2024 2023

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES ——Rupees in "000°'——
Unclaimed dividends 12,236 12236
Charily payable 4207 5735

Provision for federal excise duly on:

- Ramuneration of the Managemant Company 11.4 5 689 5,689
- Safes load 2 125 125
Auditors’ remuneration payabio 899 591
Brokerage payable 1,046 514
Withholding k. payabla 3275 1749
Olher payables 358 684
27 B34 25,758

The Finance Act, 2013 enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duly (FED) on financial services o ncude Asset
Managemeant Companles (AMCs) as a resull of which FED al the rale of 16 parcent on the remuneralion of the
Managemonl Company and sales oad was applicable with effect from June 13, 2013, The Managomanl Company
was of the view that since the remunerabion was already subjoct o provincial sales lax, further levy of FED would
fasull in double laation which did nol appear 1o ba the spirl of the law. Hence, on Seplember 4, 2013 a constlubonal
pelilion was fliled with the Sindh High Court (SHC) by the Managemenl Company logether wilth various other assel
managemeni companies challanging the levy of FED.

With effect from July 1, 2016, FED on sarices provided or rendered by non-banking financial institutions dealing m
sandcas which are subjecl lo provincial sales lax has been withdrawn by the Finance Acl, 2016

Durleg the year ended June 30, 2017, the SHC passed an order whareby all nolices, proceedings akan or panding,
orders made, duly recovered oF actons aken under the Foederal Excrse Act, 2005 in respect of the ronderdng of
providing of services (1o the extent as challenged in any relevant petition) wera set asida. In response 1o this, the
Deputy Commissionar Intand Hevenue has liled a Civil Petiion for leave o appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakkstan
which is pending adjudication.
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In view ol the above, the Fund has disconfinued making further provision in respect ol FED on remuneamation of tha
Managemanl Company and sales load with effect from July 01, 2016. However, as a malter of abundan! caution the
provision lor FED made lor the perod from June 13, 2013 Gl June 30, 2018 amounting o Rs. 5.81 million = baing
retained in lhese inancal statements of the Fund as the maller is pending before the Supreme Court of Pakistan.
Had lhe provision lor FED nol been made, he Mel Assel Value ol the Fund as at June 30, 2024 would have bean
higher by Re. 0.02 (2023: Re. 0.02) per unil

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Theamn weara no conlingandcies and commilmenls oulstanding as al June 30, 2024 and Juna 30, 2023

Jurme 30, June 30,
2024 2023

AUDITORS REMUMERATION ——Rupees in "000"——
Annual audil fee 525 420
Fee for hall yeady naview ol condaensed interim lnancal slalameants 225 150
Fee for other cedificalions 178 156
Dl of pockel expensas 23 73
1.021 a8
Sindh Sales Tax B2 G4
1,103 BE2

TAXATION

The income of the Fund is exompl from income ax under Clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule o the Incoma
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject o the condibon thal not less than 30% of the accounling income for the year as reducoed
by capilal gains, whelther realised or unrealised, s dislribuled amongsl he unil holders as cash  dividend.
Furlhermore, as per Regulation 63 of The Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notiied Enlities Regulations, 2008,
the Fund is required o distribute nol less than 90% ol ils accounting income for the year derived [rom sources other
than capilal gains as reduced by such expenses as are chamgeable therson o the unil holders. Since the
Managemenl Company has distributed he required minimum percentage ol income eamed by the Fund lor the yoear
ended June 30, 2024 lo the unil holders in the manner as axplained above, no provision for laxation has bean made
in these linancial slalements durnng the year.

The Fund is also exempl from the provisions of Seclion 113 (minimum ax) under clause 11A of Pad IV of the Second
Schedule 1o the Income Tax Ordinance, 20017.

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

The Tolal Expense Ratio {TER) of the Fund as al Junae 30, 2024 is 4. 65% (2023 4.55%) which includes 0.54% (2023:
0.34%) representing govemnmenl levies on the Fund such as sales laxes, annual fee o the SECP elc. The
prescribed limil for the ratio is 4.5% (2023: 4.5%) (exciuding governmaenl levies) under the NBFC Regulations for a
collechive invesimenl scheme calegorised as a "Shariah complanl Equily Schame™.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES OUTSTANDING WITH CONNECTED PERSONS /| OTHER RELATED PARTIES

Halaled parlies / conpecled persons of the Fund include the Management Company, olher colleclive inmvastment
schemes managed by the Managemenl Company, MCB Bank Limiled being the Holding Company ol lhe
Managemenl Company, the Truslese, directors, key managemsanl personnal and olhar associated underakings and
connecied persons. Connecled persons also incdude any person beneficially owing direclly or indirectly 10% or mare
ol the unils in the issue { nel assats of he Fund.

Transactons wilh connecled persons essenlially comprise sale and redemplion of unils, ee on account ol managing
I affairs ol the Fund, olher charges, sale and purchase ol nvesimenls and distribution paymenis lo connecled
parsons. The lransaclions with connecled persons are in the normal course ol business, al contracled rales and al
lerms delermined in accordance with markel rales.

Remuneration payable o the Managemeaen! Company is delaermined in accordance wilth the provisions of the NBFC
Regulativns and conslitulive docurmeaents ol the Fund respectively.

Ramunaration o the Trustee of the Fund s delarmined in sccordance wilh the provisions of he Trust Deed.

Allocated expenses and selling and markeling expenses are charged (o the Fund by the Managemenl Company
subject lo the maximum prescribed Tolal Expanse Ralo.

Detsils of ransactons and balances al year end wilth related parlies / connacled parsons, olthar than those which
hawe been disclosed elsewherne in these linancial stalements, are as follows:
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16.1 Transactions during the year: For the year ended
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
= (Rupees in "000°) ==

MCB Investment Management Limited - Management Company

Remunerafion of the Management Company including indirect taxes 102,018 58,464

Shariah advisory fee 490 710

Sedling and marketing expenses 16,783 33,630

Allocated expenses 3,393 2 587

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration of the Trustee (including indirect taxes) 4720 4,041

Central Depository Service charges 312 187

MCE Bank Limited- Parent of the Management Company

Bank chames 18 28

MCB Islamic Bank Limited - Subsidiary of parent of the Management Company

Profit on savings accounts T.927 1,737

D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited

Purchase 715,000 (2023: 2,146 800) Shares 39,841 113,068

Sales of 2,215,000 (2023: 1,146,000) Shares 154,347 61,622

Dividend income - 1,000

International Steels Limited 41,355 -

Purchase 870,444 (2023: NIL) Shares 65177 -

Sales of 870,444 (2023: NIL) Shares 3258 -

Dwadend Income

Lalpir Power Limited
Purchase 400,000 (2023: NIL) Shares 10,096 -

Nishat Mills Limited

Purchase 1,564,354 (2023: NIL) Shares 113,4M 63,064
Sales of 754,000 (2023: NIL) Shares 48,004 89,262
Dividend Income - 1,000
162 Balances outstanding as at year end: June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
-— (Rupees in "000°) —
MCB Investment Management Limited - Management Company
Management remuneration payable 10,044 4,102
Sindh Sales Tax payable an remunerafion of the 1,306 533
Management Company
Sales load payable including related taxes 110 =
Sharizh advisory fee payable 30 50
Allocated expenses payable 256 205
Selling and marketing expenses payable 2816 8479
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Trustee remuneration payable 402 287
Sindh Sales Tax payable on remuneration 52 a7
Securty deposits 300 300
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Balances ouistanding at year end: Jung 30, June 30,
2024 2023
Group ! associated companies —— (Rupees in "000") —
MCEB Bank Limited
Balances with banks 2678 10,852
MCB Islamic Bank Limited
Batances with banks 127,298 BZ.548
D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited
NIL shares (2023: 1,500,000 shares) - 76950
Nishat Millz Limited
1,260 354 shares (2023 450 000 shares) 88 296 25 547
16.3 Transactions during the year with For B year naded Jueo 38, N
connected persons / related e heourd § e e | Podetmed [ | Amousl
parties in units of the Fund: Mgl | ] T | |oaiehag | sisnin | i | avaniing
1 M L e E T ) gy |0 T | 3l e
ol i ol M
————— urnber o unik) —— [Fupoes In 107}
MGE Investmants Limitod - Managemond Company - IDMETSD 10MES - - 100000 12107 -
Growp | associated companses | undortakings
Hisshis! Miks Lemmid 1121411 127 685 - 1244 100 10,104 1 80 - 1860
0.5 han Comenl Compery Limilod - Empbyoes Proddon Fud Tastk 482,138 - AW 5 4166 : 4100 =
Attasmgoe Lllp Assararos Company Limited - (MF) MU0 MINI25S BAAMEA1 100815 121302 213300 4A3S00 1M
Adssngn Lile Assararce Cosgany Lmilod - Amaanal Fund 9109238 (149 330077 B840 Ll 11558 46000 85140
Aumie: Life Asteraren CoepanyLimited - Mazal BEOTTH  ZET2090 SSEOST Z25MM W42 MEM #1000 M422W
Hiyeredai Nestal Molor Provesio Limilod Emplopots Provdent Fund 1613600 200552 2004408 1584808 14536 M2 T8 BOTE
MCBFSL Tnastoo Alame Sman Podiche 2R T 2M0E 2806TH Z20E 26,184 HAr 45540 MR
Adamipie Lile: Assaraeon Company Limided Managed Growlh Furd - -] - 1883 - 24N - 2848
Direciors and Key Management Personnel 110145 SRs05M 1027 8 747 930 10,588 131648 138900 207
Mandals under discrationary portholia services 11EE G 11897387 16505506 12934582 180951 195 192308 1850
Unit heddars halding 10% of mor anils M IER916 - HIEGTI81  MIETE 5080 - Afid 7
For Bt year ooded Juse 3, N5
T el BT haadiead | =y
A st July M, - comvarsion e &l by : eoevesion
wm | eomweriand In il Jui . oo A | ol Jusd
Irangiarmod in o i) Fanskemed in ol nan
e o uns JR— YL
MGE Investmants Limitod - Managemond Company 1511880 ZESSH 4 TES.E - 17398 25000 #11M -
Growp | associated companses | undortakings
Adssnioe Feurares Compeny Limilod - Amsral Fud 11206099 3404255 115008% Q109298 1s65M4 000 S9N 8207
Aumie: Life Asteraree CospanyLimited - MF [2PB000 EARNEBD JEAISEED 141009000  SEOPE  BGAMAS 25000 12013
Attartioe Feurnce Compeny Limiled - MAZAAF #5473 - HREINSI0 ZO0FMZ GTHOSD . M40 TAM
D5 Khen Cemont Compsny Limilod - Emphyees Provdont Furd Tnst 462,358 i 4 233 4200 - - 415
el Mkl Molor Procalo Limited E oy Browdont Fund 67540 44148 - 1glagE tEn 13,000 - Wsm
s s i 112141 - - 114N 10,205 - - 10,104
MCEFSL Tnstee Alames Sman Poetiola Fund 3803 444 I e 1338AM 230511 22 G R | S
Dimciors And Koy Maragement Personne! 158840 MNMER2E1 12385438 1M 1E 17,164 1W6A10 113488 10558
Mandain undor discrafionary portioho services - 50448 257587 10520K 17 BEIGIG 47415 ZAI083  ESET 6051
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

June 30, 2024 -
At amortised LISt wakia
through Total
oot or loss
(Rupees in "000"
Financial assats
Balances with banks 204 975 . 204 975
Investments B 3,888 223 3,888 223
Receivable against sale of investments 31,284 B 31.284
Deposils and other receivablos 7,348 - 7,348
243 607 3,888 223 4.131.830
Financial liabilities
Payable to MCEB Investment Managemeni
Limited - Managemant Company 14.562 - 14,562
Payable to Cenfral Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 454 - 454
Payable against purchase of investments 9494 - 9,404
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 18,745 - 18,745
43,255 - 43,255
June 30, 2023
At fair value
o a::;"“" through Total
or loss
(Rupees in "000"
Financial asselts
Balances with banks 120,136 - 120,136
Invostments - 2.388.010 2388 010
Receivable against sale of investments 21150 . 21,150
Deposils and other receivablos 3,745 - 3,745
145 031 2,398,010 2,543 041
Financial liabilities
Payable to MCB Investment Managoment
Limited - Management Company 13,369 - 13,369
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 324 - 324
Payable against purchase of investmenls 24 401 - 24 401
Accrued expenses and other labilities 19,765 - 19, 765
57.859 - 57.859

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Fund's objective in managing risk iz the creation and protection of unit holders” value. Risk is inherent in the
Fund's aclivities, but it 5 managoed through monitoring and controlling activities which are primarily =et up o bo
performed based on limits established by the Managemenl Company, the constitulive documents of the Fund and the
reguiations and directives of the SECP. Those limils reflect the business stategy and markel environment of the
Fund as well as the level of the risk that the Fund is willing to acceptl. The Board of Directors of the Management
Company supervises the overall risk management approach within the Fund. The Fund is exposed o markel risk,
higuidity risk and credit risk arizing from the financkal instraments i hobds.

Markot risk

Markel risk is he risk that the fair value or the fulure cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a resull of
changes in markel prices.

The Management Company manages the market nsk through diversification of the investment porfolio and by
following the intemal guidelines established by the Investment Committea.

Markel risk compnses of three ypes of risk: curmency risk, yield / profit risk and price risk.
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(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund does not have any financial instruments in foreign currencies and
hence is not exposed to such nsk.

{ii) Yield/ Profit rate risk

Yield ! profit rate nsk i= the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuste as a resull
of changes in market profit rates. As of June 30, 2024, the Fund is exposed to such risk on its balances held with
banks. The Investment Committee of the Fund reviews the portfolio of the Fund on a regular basis to ensure that the
risk is managed within the acceptabie imits.

a) Sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments

Presently, the Fund holds balances with banks which expose the Fund to cash flow profit rate risk. In case of 100
basis points increase [ decrease in applicable rates on the last repricing date with ail other vanables held constant,
the net income / (loss) for the year and net assets of the Fund would have been higher / lower by Rs. 1.89 million

The composition of the Fund’s investment porifolio, KIBOR rates and rates announced by the Financial Markets
Association of Pakistan are expected to change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June
30, 2024 is nol necessanly indicafive of the impact on the Fund's nel assels of fulure movements in yield / profit
rates.

Yield / profit rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is based on the settlement date.

The Fund's vield / profit rate sensitivity related to financial assets and financial liabifities as at June 30, 2024 can be
determined as follows:

June 30, 2024
Exposed o yield | profit rate rick
™ ﬁm : Mol exposed
Yiedd / profit rate (%) Up to three 2nd More than to yiold Todtad
months - tpho oneyear | profit raln risk
ofil yoar
{Rupaes in "0007)
On-balance sheal financial instruments
Financial azssats
Balances with banks 17.00% to 21.30% 188263 - - 15,711 204 974
Ivesiments - - - 3888273 | 3888223
Recoivable against sabe of ivesiments . - - 31,284 31,284
Deposits and other receivables s = = 7,348 7,348
189 263 - - 3042566 4131825
Financial kabilithes
Payablo lo MCEB Investment Maragement
Limited - Managemeant Comgpany . - - 14,562 14,562
Payable lo Central Deposiiory Company of
Pakislan Limited - Trustce . - - 454 454
Payable against purchase of imvestments s - - 9404 9494
Accrued exponses and othor iabilities - - - 18,745 18,745
~ - 43 355 43 255
On-balance sheet gap (a) 189 263 - - 3808311 4088574
Of-balance sheet financhal instrumeants - - - s H
Off-balance sheet gap (b) - - B - -
Total profit rate sensitivity gap (a+b) 189 263 - -
Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap 189.263 189,263 189,263
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182

June 30, 2023
Exposed fo yield | profit rate risk
More than fhree et 2
Wield | profit rate (%)| Up to three woilia il bl More than | toyield) Total
rale risk
maonths e one yaar | profit
(Rupses in 0007
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Balances wilh banks 11.43% -19.75% 06,966 - - 23470 120,136
Investments - - - 2398010 | 2398010
Recelvable agains! sale of imestmants - - - 21,150 21,150
Deposibs and olher receivablas - - - 3,745 A.745
a6, 066 - - 2446075 2543041
Financial liabilities
Payabla Io MCB Investimeanl Marsgament
Lirnited - Manageamenl Cormparmy - - - 13,380 13,369
Payable lo Central Depository Company of
Pakiztan Limited - Trustes - - - 324 324
Payable agairsl puchese of investmeants - - - 24 4 244
Aconmd experses and other Eabilities - - - 19,765 19,785
- - - 57,8589 57,859
On-balance sheel gap {a) 065,966 = - 2IBBIIE 2485182
Off-balance sheet financial instrumants - - - - e
Off-balance sheet gap (b) - - = 3 E
Total profit rate sensitivity gap (a+h) G _ .
Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap 96,966 96,966 96.966
{ill) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in markel prices (other than those arising from yield / profil rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes ane
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar Tinancial
instruments traded in the markot

Cquity price risk is the rsk that the fir value of equity instruments decreases as a resull of changes in the loved of
equity indices and the value of individual stocks.

In case of 1% Increasae f decrease in KSE-100 index on June 30, 2024 with all other variables held constant, the total
comprehensive income of the Fund for the year would increase | decrease by Rs. 3888 million (2023: Rs. 23.98
millian) and tho net assets of the Fund would increase [ decrease by the same amount as a resull of gains / losses on
equity securities dassified as financial assets al fair value through peofit or loss.

The analysis s based on the assumption thal equity index had increased /[ decreased by 1% with all other variables
held constant and all the Fund's equity instruments moved according to the historical correlation with the index. This
represents management's best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the KMI-30 Index, having regard (o the
historical volatility of the index. The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and the comelation thereof (o the
KMI-30 Index, is expecled lo change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2024 is
nol necessarly indicative of the effect on the Fund's net assets of fulure movements in the level of the KSE-100
Index.

Credit risk

Credii risk s the risk that the counterparty to a finandal instrument will cause a financial loss lo the Fund by failing o
discharge its obligation as it fafls due. The able below analyses the Fund's maximum exposure o crodit risk:
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18.3

2024 2023
Balance as per Balance as per
statoment of H“"“h statoment of m"'“h
assets and uadlll : e assets and m‘ sk
liabilitios: liabilitles
Ruipees in 000"
Balances with banks 204,975 204 975 120,136 324 500
Investments 3,888 223 = 2398010 .
Depesits and other recohvables 7,348 7,348 3,745 733
Receivable against sale of invesimenis 31,284 31.284 21150 21,945
4,131,830 243,607 2543 041 353,776

Difference in the balance as per statoment of assoet and labilites and maximum exposure s duc o the fact that
imvostments in oguity securities of Rs. 3,888 22 million (2023: Rs. 2 398 01 million) is not axposod to credil nsk.

Thon = a possibiity of defaull by participants or failure of the financial market | stock exchanges, the dopositonos,
the setlements or clearing systems, cle. Setiloment rsk on equily securties s considered minimal because of
inhaorent conbtfols established in the selllement process. The Fund's policy is o enter inlo financial contracls in
accordance with inlemal nsk management polices and instruments guidelines approved by tho Investment
Cormmilioe.

Credit quality of financikal assots
The Fund's significant credil nsk (excduding credit fisk medating 1o setllement of equity securibos) arises mainly on

account of its placements in banks and profit accrued theroon. The credit rating profile of balances with banks i= as
Tollowes:

%% of linancdial asseis exposed

Rating category to credit risk
2024 Z0Z23
AAS 578 1497
A 242 50.02
Al 29 64 250
Ab 0.05 002
A = 4540
A 6211 =
100.00 100.00

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credil rnsk exists when changes in economic or indusiry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregale credil oxposure i significant in relation o the Fund's lolal credl exposure. The
Fund's portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversifiod and transactions are ontered into with divorse crodit-
worthy countorparnics thareby mitigaling any significant concentration of cradil sk,

Sottiement risk

The Fund's activilies may give fse 1o sk al the Ume of settlement of transactions. Selloment risk = the sk of loss
due to the failure of counter party to honour (s obligations to delivor cash, socurities or other assets as conlraciually
agreod. Credit risk relating o unsolled transactons in soccunties & considered 1o bo minimal as the Fund usoes
brokers with high creditwonthiness and the ransactions ate sollled or pakd for only upon delivery using the central
clearing system.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the dsk that the Fund may not be abie 1o generate sufficien] cash resources 1o sottle s obligation in
full as thoy fall due or can only do =0 on terms that are materially disadvantageous o the Fund.

The Fund |s exposed 1o dally setiement of equilty securitics and dally redemptions at the option of unit holders. The
Fund's ‘approach to managing liquidity is o ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficiont
Hguidity 1o meet its kabilitics when due under both normal and stressed conditions. The Fund's policy is, therefore, to
invest the majorily of ks assets in investments that are traded In an active market and can be readily disposed and
are considered readily realisatde.
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As per the NBFC Regulations, 2008, tho Fund can bormow in the short-term o ensure setflement, the maximum limit
of which is fifteen percent of the net assets upto 90 days and would be secured by the assets of the Fund.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liguidity, the Fund may 2iso withhold daily redemption requests in excess of ten
porcent of the units in ssue and such requests would be treated as redemption requests gualifying for being
processed on the next business day. Such procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption requests come
down to a level below ten percent of the units then inissue. The Fund did not withhold any redemptions during the
year

The table below summarnes the maturity profile of the Fund's financial instruments. The analysis into relevant maturity
groupings is based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual matunty dates.
However, the asseots and [abiliies that are receivable / payable on demand including bank balances have been
included in the maturity grouping of one month:

June 30, 2024
Mare than "“. T | Moee than Financial
Within 1 onc manth hs ang| T ¥EAC More than 3| instriaments Total
mnth and wpto and upio oS with no fimed
" = uplo ane | L :
year Y Y
[N
Financial asscis
Elaiances with banks 204,975 2SS
e siments 3,888 2y B R
Rroooivmbic agaimnst sale of imasimeris 41,284 31,284
Deposits and other recoivablos 1,213 4, 135 [t
38 472 L . = . 2,832 58 4,131,830
Financial Babilities
Payabile o MCD Invesiment Manogoment
Limited - Maorsgemem Cormpasrmy 14,562 14 662
Payabie o Central Deopository Compamy of
Pakistan Limited - Trusies 454 L
Payabile against purchase of imestmenes 24054 94094
Aooued openses and other Eobilites 18 745 19,?-!5 |
43 RN = = - - - 43 288
Mot asoets /[l bilies) e 217 = = = = o2 358 4 575
June 30, 2023
Morethan | MO TRAN | thian Fimancial
Withinm 1 one month | P yEAT Blore than 8| instruments Tatad
momkh and upto = and upio Yo with no fimed
three months u-p:- fiwr years matarty
Rupess m DO
Fmancial assebs
Oislamces wath bank= 2, T 120,155
vestments 358,010 2198010
Reooivabies against sale of mersimicnis 2,150 21,150
Deposids and other receivables A - . _J&:lh = Hi
142,023 = - - - 2,401, 018 2,543,041
Financial Eabilities
Payabile o MCH rvestment Marosgomend
Lirmited - Manogement Companmy 13,365 13365
Payobile o Central Depositony Compamy of
P abuston Limtod - Trushes a4 24
Payabile ogainst purctnse of imeestmenis 24 401 24 401
Acoreed ogpenses and othor abalitics 18, S - 149, /65
57858 : z 5 : = 57,859

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the prce that would be received to soll an asset or paid to fransfer a iability in an orderly transaction
between market parficipants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can anse betweon camying values
and the fair value esfimates.

Underlying the dofinition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund i a going concem without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to underiake a transaction on adverse erms.

Financial asseis which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the statemeant

of assels and hiabilites date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered not to be
significantly differant from the respective book values.
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Fair value hierarchy

International Financial Reporting Standard 13, "Fair Value Measurement' reguires the Fund to classify assets using a
fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value
higrarchy has the following levels:

Lewe! 1: guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabifities;

Lewvel 2¢ inputs other than guoied prices included within level 1 that are observable for the assct or liability either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Lovel 30 inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobse rvable inputs).

Az at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 the Fund held the following financial instruments measured at fair valuos:

Junea 30, 2024

| Lavel 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 | | Total

I
Financial assets "at fair value (Rupees in "0007)

through profit or loss”
Listed equity securifies 3,888 223 - - 3,888,223
35383323 - - EEB-BBEEEE
June 30, 2023
Laval 1 [ Leval 2_[ [ Level3 || Taotal
Fimancial azssots "al fair value {(Rupees in "0007)
through profit or loss"
Listed equity securifies 2385010 - - 2398010
EE3BB 010 - - Eﬁiﬂ 10

UNIT HOLDERS® FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by redecmable units. These units are entifled to dividends and o payment of
their proportionate share of the Fund's Not Asset Value per unit on the redemption date. The redevant movements are
shown on the "Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund®.

The Fund has no resinction on the subscription and redemption of units. As required under the NBFC Regulations,
avery open end scheme shall maintain fund size (i.e. net assets of the Fund) of Rs. 100 million at all times during the
life of the scheme. The Fund has historically maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size at
all imes.

The Fund's objectives when managing unit holders’ funds are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concerm
so that it can continue to provide retums to the wnit holders and to maintain a strong base of assets to meot
unexpecied losses or opportunities.

in accordance with the sk management policies as siated in note 21, the Fund endeavours o invest the
subscriptions received in approprate investment avenues while maintaining sufficient liguidity o meet redemptions,
such liquidity being augmented by disposal of investments or short-tarm borrowings, where necessary.

UNIT HOLDMNG PATTERN OF THE FUND

Details of pattern of unitholding June 30, 2024
Number of Number of Investment Percentage
unit holders units held amount | investment
(Rupesas in "000") e

Individuals 3,517 37,965,511 574418 14.08%
Asszociaied companies 8 155,427 496 2351618 57.64%
Insurance companies 3 28,762 590 435179 10.67%
Retirement funds 15 43.580.209 659,369 16.16%
Others 25 3.947 448 59,072.89 1.45%
3,568 259.583& 4,079,657 100%
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June 30, 2023

Mumber of | | Mumbar of Investment
unit holders units held amount

| Paercentage
investment
5%

{Rupees in "000°)

Individuais 2316 32,295,534 290,983 11.74%
Associled companies T 182, 229231 1,641,885 66_25%
Insurance campanies 4 13,734.977 123,752 4. 99%
Retiremoent funds 24 42 517 688 383,084 15.46%.
Others a75 4,304,235 38,781 1.56%
3,326 275,081,665 2 478 486 100%
TOP TEN BROKERS /| DEAL ERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID
Detalls of commission paid by the Fund (o top len brokers by percentage during the year ane as follows:
2024
(Percentage)
1 Foundation Securities Limited 9.70%
2 lsmail Igbal Securitkes (Private) Limited 7.62%
3 Alfatah CLSA Securilies (Private) Limited 6.69%:
4 Optirmas Capital Management Limibod 6.65%
5 Khadim Ali Shah Bukhan Securiies Limited 6.54%
1 EFG Hermes Pakistan Limdled 6.25%:
i Top Line Securities (Private) Limited 5.54%
B8 Akik Capital {Privato) Limited 5.46%
9 J5 Global Capital Limited 5.2T%
10 Alfa Adhi Securilies (Private) Limited 5.05%
2023
(Farcontage)
1 Intermarket Securities Limited 6.40%
2 Topline Securitles Limiled 5.27%
3 Akik Capital (Private) Limited 5.12%
4 Alfatah CLSA Securities (Private) Limited 4.90%
5 J5 Global Capital Limited 4 89%
& Insight Securities Limited 4 85%
T lsmail Igbal Securitkes (Private) Limited 4.73%
8 Oplimas Capital Managemen! Limited 4.67%
8 Foundation Securities Limited 4 44%,
10 MNext Capital Limitod 4.35%

ATTEMDAMNCE AT MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Thez 18%th, 190th, 191th, 192nd, 193rd, 1841h, 195th and 196th meeling of the Board of Direclors were held on July
21, 2023, July 26, 2023, September 26, 2023, Cctober 12, 2023, Oclober 18, 2023, February 02, 2024, April 19, 2024
and Apnl 22, 2024 respoctively. Information in respect of altendance by the directors and other persons in the

meelings is given below:

Number of Humber of mosfings
Kame of direciors Designation mestings || Atendanc mm!m Meetings not attended
held & required

Mr. Haroon Rashid Chairman 8 a a - -
Mr. Alrned Jahangir Drimactor B B a8 - -
Mr. Syed Savail Meckal Hussain Dhirector a8 B T 1 1851h
Ms_ Mavra Adil Khan Direclor -] 8 i 2 192and, 195th
Mr. Muhammead Sagib Salesm Chiel Execulive Officer 8 5 5 - -
Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy Drirector 8 .| 5 3 190th, 152nd, 195th
Mr. Marnzar Mushlag Director 8 a a - -
Mr. Shoaib Mumlaz Drimactor B B i a3 192nd, 183th, 185th
Mr. Khawsja Khalil Shah * Chief Executive Officer 8 3 3 - -

* Mr. Muhammad Sagib Saleem resigned fram the Board with effect from October 21, 2023,
¥ Mr. Khiawala Khalil Shah has been appainted on the Board with effect from November 01, 2023,
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND FUND MANAGER

Details of members of Investment Commitiee of the Fund are as follows:

2, Name Desigriafion Qualification Exporihion i
No. years

1 Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah Chief Executive Officer MEBA, 32

2 Mr Muhammad Asim Chiefl Investment Officer MBA, CFA 21

3 WMr Awais Abdul Sattar Portfolic Manager Equities MBA, CFA 13

4  Mr. Saad Ahmed Head of Fixed Income MEBA, 18

5 Me Syed Abid Al Head of Equities MEA 16

6  Mr Usama lgbal Fund Manager Graduale 20

Mr. Syed Absid Ali is the Manager of the Fund as at year end. Other funds being managed by him are as follows:

- Alhamra Islamic Pension Fund;

- Alhamra Opportunity Fund - Dividend Strategy Plan;

- MCE Alhamma KPK Government Employees Pension Fund - Money Market Sub Fund; and

- Alhamra |slamic Assel Allocation Fund.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been re-classified, re-arranged or additionally incorporated in these financial statements,
wherever necessary o facilitate companison and to conform with changes in presentation in the cument year. Mo
significant rearrangements or reclassifications were made in these financial statements.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were suthonsed for issue on September 25, 2024 by the Board of Directors of
the Management Company.

GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise specified.

For MCB Investment Management Limited
(Management Company)

- .-lr
ol AP
T F - i &
P )ﬂu.sebmmaﬁi'-'ﬁ—

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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PATTERN OF UNITS HOLDING BY SIZE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

MNo. of Unit Holders Unit holdings Total units held
2,052 A. 001-10,000 208,098

924 B. 10,001 - 100,000 2,436,283

457 C. 100,001 — 1000,000 9,393,264

135 D. 1000,001 & Above 257,645,710

3,568 269,683,354
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Total Met Assets Value - Bs. in mllion A OTRESTE T 4TH32TH 24303032 3 AN I KO 2 746.9741
Nei Assets value porunit — Rupees 1513 wa 9 100 11.29%00 LA
Closing {Mier Price 15.64 932 G410 116700 15400
Closing Repurchase Price 1513 9.01 1000 11.2%00 #4000
Highest offer price per onit 17K5 995 2 1266 121200 1190
Lowent offer frice per umit w32 36 G THIN 1500 f1. HENH]
Highest Redemptiom price per umit 1726 9.62 117200 11.7200 10.8200
Lowest Redemption price per umit 9.01 so K_ER(0 KRS0 £ 6600
Ihsinbobion per umit — s * 2 MWHM] - - - L IT6HE
Averape Annual Reiurn - %
One year Wi a2 { {1940y M2 234
Two yoar .72 { TIL20RY 5.6 16,14} LRy
Three year 3134 ER T 4249 402 (9.95)
Mot Income for the vear — Ks. m mallion ZONE.2%50 {200 14495 (657 20H2) HI 1. K390 4104040
Dastribution made during the year — Rs. m millon HIXKSKI0 - - - 34 TGRO
Accumulated Capital Girowth — B, in mallion 11727126 2144949 (257 2UEE2) H31.E3H) fr 3744l
* Dafe of Distribatinn
26-Jun-24 2
EZ
Nil
Date: 1 Rate
Nil
Nl
X020
July 03, 2020 01168

Disclaimor

The past performance is nol necessanly indicative of uture porformance and unit prices and investiments and refurmes may go down, as well

as up.
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PROXY ISSUED BY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

The Board of Directors of MCB Investment Management Limited (the Management Company of
Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund — ALHISF) has an overall responsibility for the implementation of

Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures which is available on the Management Company’s website

(www.mcbfunds.com).

During the financial year ended June 30, 2024, the Management Company on behalf of ALHISF
participated in seven (7) sharcholders’ mectings. The Management Company did not participate in
sharcholders’ meetings in the cases which did not meet the criteria reporied in Paragraph No. 8
and 9 of the Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures. Summary of actual proxics voted during the
financial year arc as follows:

Resolutions | For | Against | Abstain | Reason for Abstaining
Number 65 53 12 0 -
(Yeages) 100 82 1¥ 0 -

Detailed information regarding actual proxics voted by the Management Company in respect of

ALHISF is available without any charges, upon request, to all Unit Holders.
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